
 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5000 CLARK AVENUE 

LAKEWOOD, CALIFORNIA 
 

April 28, 2015 
 
 
 
ADJOURNED MEETING:  Water Conservation Study Session 6:00 p.m. 
 EXECUTIVE BOARD ROOM 

CALL TO ORDER 7:30 p.m. 

 
INVOCATION:  Reverend Patrick Thompson, Grace First Presbyterian Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Lightning Camp Fire Club 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Jeff Wood 
 Vice Mayor Ron Piazza 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Todd Rogers 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
Presentation by Southern California Edison Introducing New Public Affairs Region Manager 
 
Presentation of Special Recognition Award by Meals On Wheels Board President Ricky Campbell 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
All items listed within this section of the agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion without separate discussion.  Any Member of Council may request an item be removed for 
individual discussion or further explanation.  All items removed shall be considered immediately 
following action on the remaining items. 
 
RI-1 Approval of Minutes of the Meeting held April 14, 2015 
 
RI-2 Approval of Personnel Transactions 
 
RI-3 Approval of Registers of Demands 
 
RI-4 Approval of Quarterly Schedule of Investments 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
1.1 General Plan Amendment No. 2015-1, Resolution No. 2015-10, Zone Change Case No. 114 and 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 72930, Resolution No. 2015-11, for the Property Located at 11609 216th 
Street, and the Related Mitigated Negative Declaration, Ordinance No. 2015-3 

 
LEGISLATION: 
2.1 Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-12; Approving Appointments to City Commissions 



City Council Agenda 
April 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Any qualified individual with a disability that would exclude that individual from participating in or attending the above meeting should contact the City 
Clerk’s Office, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA, at 562/866-9771, ext. 2200; at least 48 hours prior to the above meeting to ensure that reasonable 

arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or other reasonable auxiliary aids or services may be provided. 
 

Copies of staff reports and other writings pertaining to this agenda are available for public review during regular business hours 
in the Office of the City Clerk, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA  90712 

REPORTS: 
3.1 2015 Pan American Fiesta Preview 
 
3.2 Status Update on Del Valle Park Memorial Plaza 
 
 

AGENDA 
LAKEWOOD SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

1.  Approval of Register of Demands 
 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





































For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Summary Statement

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Total Cash Basis Earnings

Plus Net Realized Gains/Losses

Less Purchased Interest Related to Interest/Coupons

Interest/Dividends/Coupons Received

Earnings Reconciliation (Cash Basis) - Managed Account

Less Beginning Accrued Interest

Less Beginning Amortized Value of Securities

Less Cost of New Purchases

Plus Coupons/Dividends Received

Plus Proceeds of Maturities/Calls/Principal Payments

Plus Proceeds from Sales

Ending Accrued Interest

Ending Amortized Value of Securities

Earnings Reconciliation (Accrual Basis)

$36,045,253.19 

(695,000.00)

(2,248,165.04)

 2,921,137.04 

 0.00 

 47,200.22 

$36,070,425.41 

 62,610.27 

(6,785.03)

(62,728.68)

($6,903.44)

Total

 35,966,379.27 

 70,503.72 

 2,259,640.36 

 695,000.00 

 51,134.95 

(2,927,922.07)

(36,001,142.73)

(92,121.08)

Total Accrual Basis Earnings $21,472.42 

Closing Market Value

Change in Current Value

Unsettled Trades

Principal Acquisitions

Principal Dispositions

Maturities/Calls

Opening Market Value

Transaction Summary - Managed Account

_________________

_________________

_______________________________________________ _______________________________________________ Reconciling Transactions

Net Cash Contribution

Security Purchases

Principal Payments

Coupon/Interest/Dividend Income

Sale Proceeds

Maturities/Calls

Cash Transactions Summary - Managed Account

 695,000.00 

 2,259,640.36 

 51,134.95 

 0.00 

(2,927,922.07)

(17,035.07)

 0.00 

Cash Balance

$103,574.08 Closing Cash Balance

Account 51260100 Page 1



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Portfolio Summary and Statistics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Account Summary

Percent Par Value Market ValueDescription

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note  19,655,000.00  19,805,900.95  54.91 

Municipal Bond / Note  450,000.00  450,722.75  1.25 

Federal Agency Bond / Note  2,425,000.00  2,438,420.29  6.76 

Corporate Note  8,995,000.00  9,023,789.96  25.02 

Certificate of Deposit  4,350,000.00  4,351,591.46  12.06 

Managed Account Sub-Total 35,875,000.00 36,070,425.41 100.00%

Accrued Interest  70,503.72 

Total Portfolio 35,875,000.00 36,140,929.13

Unsettled Trades  0.00  0.00 

Sector Allocation 

12.06%
Cert of Deposit

25.02%
Corporate Note

6.76%

Fed Agy Bond /
Note

1.25%
Muni Bond / Note

54.91%
US TSY Bond / Note

0 - 6 Months 6 - 12 Months 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years 3 - 4 Years 4 - 5 Years Over 5 Years

0.00%

7.00%

45.12%

38.45%

9.43%

0.00% 0.00%

Maturity Distribution Characteristics

Yield to Maturity at Cost

Yield to Maturity at Market

Duration to Worst

Weighted Average Days to Maturity

 1.88 

 696 

0.82%

0.66%

Account 51260100 Page 2



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Issuer Summary

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Credit Quality (S&P Ratings)

5.72%
A

11.06%
A+

3.22%
A-

3.54%
A-1+

1.85%
AA

64.17%
AA+

7.58%
AA-

2.86%
AAA

Issuer Summary 

Percentof HoldingsIssuer

Market Value

 201,483.20  0.56 AMERICAN EXPRESS CO

 653,611.66  1.81 AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE

 904,463.10  2.51 APPLE INC

 610,965.02  1.69 BANK OF NEW YORK CO INC

 724,882.55  2.01 BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

 492,189.32  1.36 BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC

 275,500.50  0.76 CA ST DEPT OF WATER REV BONDS

 397,126.29  1.10 CATERPILLAR INC

 561,890.00  1.56 DEERE & COMPANY

 754,317.75  2.09 EXXON MOBIL CORP

 702,753.42  1.95 FANNIE MAE

 975,036.08  2.70 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS

 760,630.79  2.11 FREDDIE MAC

 551,081.85  1.53 GLAXOSMITHKLINE PLC

 853,661.95  2.37 HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

 897,777.90  2.49 IBM CORP

 801,932.00  2.22 JP MORGAN CHASE & CO

 725,112.38  2.01 NORDEA BANK AB

 961,677.53  2.67 PEPSICO, INC

 899,765.10  2.49 RABOBANK NEDERLAND

 386,247.79  1.07 TOYOTA MOTOR CORP

 19,805,900.95  54.91 UNITED STATES TREASURY

 175,222.25  0.49 UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

 723,609.45  2.01 US BANCORP

 548,002.95  1.52 WELLS FARGO & COMPANY

 725,583.63  2.01 WESTPAC BANKING CORP NY

$36,070,425.41 Total  100.00%

Account 51260100 Page 3



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note Par

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

 958,169.58  957,284.67  7,557.15  1,004,889.65 05/24/1305/22/13AaaAA+ 925,000.00 912828KZ2 0.44

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

 1,890,442.68  1,886,790.52  14,910.05  1,976,845.70 05/31/1305/24/13AaaAA+ 1,825,000.00 912828KZ2 0.53

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 08/31/2011 1.000% 08/31/2016

 489,016.29  488,479.04  421.74  491,119.33 03/03/1402/27/14AaaAA+ 485,000.00 912828RF9 0.49

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2011 0.875% 11/30/2016

 1,787,064.68  1,782,455.18  5,205.53  1,788,728.52 11/01/1310/31/13AaaAA+ 1,775,000.00 912828RU6 0.62

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2011 0.875% 11/30/2016

 2,094,137.76  2,089,984.64  6,100.00  2,097,875.00 12/03/1311/27/13AaaAA+ 2,080,000.00 912828RU6 0.58

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/03/2012 0.875% 12/31/2016

 1,157,816.55  1,153,665.28  2,529.52  1,154,312.50 12/09/1412/05/14AaaAA+ 1,150,000.00 912828RX0 0.69

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 03/31/2012 1.000% 03/31/2017

 705,851.30  702,754.27  19.13  703,417.97 10/06/1410/02/14AaaAA+ 700,000.00 912828SM3 0.80

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/31/2012 0.625% 05/31/2017

 2,000,156.00  1,991,946.78  4,189.56  1,988,906.25 06/03/1406/02/14AaaAA+ 2,000,000.00 912828SY7 0.81

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/02/2012 0.750% 06/30/2017

 1,402,843.40  1,398,797.04  2,639.50  1,398,578.13 11/03/1410/30/14AaaAA+ 1,400,000.00 912828TB6 0.79

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2012 0.500% 07/31/2017

 697,320.40  694,472.65  580.11  694,148.44 02/10/1502/06/15AaaAA+ 700,000.00 912828TG5 0.84

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2012 0.500% 07/31/2017

 1,892,726.80  1,894,359.62  1,574.59  1,893,988.28 02/04/1502/02/15AaaAA+ 1,900,000.00 912828TG5 0.63

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2010 1.875% 09/30/2017

 1,130,937.50  1,122,501.31  56.35  1,127,585.94 09/04/1409/02/14AaaAA+ 1,100,000.00 912828PA2 1.04

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2012 0.750% 12/31/2017

 199,625.00  198,587.93  377.07  198,421.87 12/03/1412/02/14AaaAA+ 200,000.00 912828UE8 1.01

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

 696,882.90  694,964.27  14.34  694,941.41 03/27/1503/26/15AaaAA+ 700,000.00 912828UU2 0.99

Account 51260100 Page 4



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note Par

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

 1,144,879.05  1,141,682.29  23.57  1,141,644.53 03/27/1503/26/15AaaAA+ 1,150,000.00 912828UU2 1.00

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

 1,558,031.06  1,551,585.45  32.07  1,551,183.98 02/27/1502/26/15AaaAA+ 1,565,000.00 912828UU2 1.04

 46,230.28  19,805,900.95  19,750,310.94  0.74  19,906,587.50  19,655,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

Municipal Bond / Note Par

CA ST DEPT OF WATER TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 09/27/2012 0.650% 12/01/2015

 275,500.50  275,000.00  595.83  275,000.00 09/27/1209/19/12Aa1AAA 275,000.00 13066KX87 0.65

UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 10/02/2013 0.907% 05/15/2016

 75,212.25  75,000.00  256.98  75,000.00 10/02/1309/26/13Aa2AA 75,000.00 91412GSX4 0.91

UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 03/14/2013 0.659% 05/15/2016

 100,010.00  100,000.00  248.96  100,000.00 03/14/1302/28/13Aa2AA 100,000.00 91412GPX7 0.66

 1,101.77  450,722.75  450,000.00  0.69  450,000.00  450,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

Federal Agency Bond / Note Par

FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

 283,123.68  282,077.44  29.17  284,135.60 10/03/1310/01/13AaaAA+ 280,000.00 3135G0CM3 0.75

FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

 419,629.74  418,128.10  43.23  421,227.53 10/03/1310/01/13AaaAA+ 415,000.00 3135G0CM3 0.74

FHLB NOTES

DTD 08/07/2014 0.500% 09/28/2016

 975,036.08  973,468.55  40.63  972,806.25 08/07/1408/06/14AaaAA+ 975,000.00 3130A2T97 0.61

FREDDIE MAC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 06/25/2012 1.000% 07/28/2017

 760,630.79  754,960.69  1,321.25  754,949.41 08/14/1408/12/14AaaAA+ 755,000.00 3137EADJ5 1.00

 1,434.28  2,438,420.29  2,428,634.78  0.77  2,433,118.79  2,425,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

Corporate Note Par

PEPSICO INC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 02/28/2013 0.700% 02/26/2016

 285,528.68  284,969.64  193.96  284,900.25 02/28/1302/25/13A1A- 285,000.00 713448CE6 0.71

Account 51260100 Page 5



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

Corporate Note Par

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 02/26/2013 1.125% 02/26/2016

 801,932.00  799,705.22  875.00  799,032.00 02/26/1302/21/13A3A 800,000.00 46623EJU4 1.17

BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON (CALLABLE)

DTD 03/06/2013 0.700% 03/04/2016

 270,427.14  269,950.43  141.75  269,840.70 03/06/1303/05/13A1A+ 270,000.00 06406HCG2 0.72

BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON (CALLABLE)

DTD 03/06/2013 0.700% 03/04/2016

 340,537.88  339,937.57  178.50  339,799.40 03/06/1303/04/13A1A+ 340,000.00 06406HCG2 0.72

GLAXOSMITHKLINE CAP INC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 03/18/2013 0.700% 03/18/2016

 551,081.85  549,846.34  139.03  549,609.50 10/02/1309/27/13A2A+ 550,000.00 377372AG2 0.73

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP

DTD 05/17/2013 0.800% 05/17/2016

 386,247.79  384,940.22  1,146.44  384,842.15 05/17/1305/14/13Aa3AA- 385,000.00 89236TAL9 0.81

WELLS FARGO & COMPANY

DTD 07/29/2013 1.250% 07/20/2016

 548,002.95  544,768.27  1,343.58  544,476.80 07/29/1307/22/13A2A+ 545,000.00 94974BFL9 1.28

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 08/15/2013 0.950% 08/15/2016

 492,189.32  489,880.30  594.81  489,740.30 08/15/1308/06/13Aa2AA 490,000.00 084664BX8 0.97

AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 10/10/2013 1.125% 10/07/2016

 316,724.94  314,439.16  1,712.81  313,903.80 10/10/1310/03/13A1A+ 315,000.00 02665WAB7 1.24

PEPSICO CORP NOTES

DTD 02/28/2014 0.950% 02/22/2017

 676,148.85  674,508.39  694.69  674,230.50 02/28/1402/25/14A1A- 675,000.00 713448CL0 0.99

APPLE INC CORP NOTE

DTD 05/06/2014 1.050% 05/05/2017

 904,463.10  899,665.13  3,806.25  899,523.00 05/06/1404/29/14Aa1AA+ 900,000.00 037833AM2 1.07

JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP NOTES

DTD 06/12/2014 1.125% 06/12/2017

 561,890.00  559,806.38  1,907.50  559,736.80 06/12/1406/09/14A2A 560,000.00 24422ESN0 1.14

HSBC USA INC

DTD 06/23/2014 1.300% 06/23/2017

 301,023.60  299,659.69  1,061.67  299,544.00 06/23/1406/16/14A2A 300,000.00 40434CAA3 1.35

CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SE

DTD 08/20/2014 1.250% 08/18/2017

 397,126.29  394,842.33  589.76  394,802.50 08/20/1408/13/14A2A 395,000.00 14912L6D8 1.27

AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT CORP NOTES

DTD 09/23/2014 1.550% 09/22/2017

 201,483.20  199,777.76  77.50  199,732.00 09/23/1409/18/14A2A- 200,000.00 0258M0DR7 1.60

Account 51260100 Page 6



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

Corporate Note Par

IBM CORP NOTES

DTD 02/06/2015 1.125% 02/06/2018

 897,777.90  897,392.66  1,546.88  897,255.00 02/06/1502/03/15Aa3AA- 900,000.00 459200HZ7 1.23

EXXON MOBIL CORP NOTES

DTD 03/06/2015 1.305% 03/06/2018

 754,317.75  750,000.00  679.69  750,000.00 03/06/1503/04/15AaaAAA 750,000.00 30231GAL6 1.31

AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP NOTES

DTD 03/13/2015 1.500% 03/13/2018

 336,886.72  334,558.44  251.25  334,551.10 03/13/1503/10/15A1A+ 335,000.00 02665WAT8 1.55

 16,941.07  9,023,789.96  8,988,647.93  1.11  8,985,519.80  8,995,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

Certificate of Deposit Par

WESTPAC BANKING CORP NY LT FLOAT CD

DTD 04/17/2014 0.433% 04/15/2016

 725,583.63  725,000.00  663.19  725,000.00 04/17/1404/16/14P-1A-1+ 725,000.00 96121TWF1 0.41

RABOBANK NEDERLAND NV NY CD

DTD 05/13/2014 0.716% 05/06/2016

 899,765.10  900,000.00  2,596.41  900,000.00 05/13/1405/09/14Aa2A+ 900,000.00 21684BPV0 0.71

BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA HOUS CD FLOAT

DTD 06/13/2014 0.445% 06/10/2016

 724,882.55  724,737.74  196.98  724,562.10 06/13/1406/11/14Aa2A+ 725,000.00 06417HMU7 0.28

NORDEA BANK FINLAND NY FLOAT CERT 

DEP

DTD 06/13/2014 0.450% 06/13/2016

 725,112.38  725,000.00  154.03  725,000.00 06/13/1406/11/14Aa3AA- 725,000.00 65558ET57 0.31

HSBC BANK USA NA CD

DTD 02/13/2015 0.880% 08/15/2016

 552,638.35  550,000.00  631.89  550,000.00 02/13/1502/11/15P-1A-1+ 550,000.00 40428AC54 0.88

US BANK NA CINCINNATI (CALLABLE) CD

DTD 09/11/2014 1.375% 09/11/2017

 723,609.45  724,047.88  553.82  723,832.75 09/11/1409/09/14Aa3AA- 725,000.00 90333VPF1 1.41

 4,796.32  4,351,591.46  4,348,785.62  0.66  4,348,394.85  4,350,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

 35,875,000.00  36,123,620.94  0.82  70,503.72  35,966,379.27  36,070,425.41 Managed Account Sub-Total

Account 51260100 Page 7



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

$35,875,000.00 $36,123,620.94 $70,503.72 $35,966,379.27 $36,070,425.41  0.82%

$36,140,929.13 

$70,503.72 

Total Investments

Accrued Interest

Securities Sub-Total

Account 51260100 Page 8



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Value On Cost Amort Cost to WorstCUSIP Broker Date PriceDated Date/Coupon/Maturity Par at Mkt

Market Unreal G/L Unreal G/L DurationNext Call MarketSecurity Type/Description YTMEffective

Duration

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note

 1.23  884.91 (46,720.07) 958,169.58  103.59 RBS_SEC 925,000.00 912828KZ2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

0.37 1.23 

 1.23  3,652.16 (86,403.02) 1,890,442.68  103.59 BNP PARI 1,825,000.00 912828KZ2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

0.37 1.23 

 1.41  537.25 (2,103.04) 489,016.29  100.83 MORGANST 485,000.00 912828RF9US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 08/31/2011 1.000% 08/31/2016

0.41 1.41 

 1.65  4,609.50 (1,663.84) 1,787,064.68  100.68 CITIGRP 1,775,000.00 912828RU6US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2011 0.875% 11/30/2016

0.47 1.65 

 1.65  4,153.12 (3,737.24) 2,094,137.76  100.68 BARCLAYS 2,080,000.00 912828RU6US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2011 0.875% 11/30/2016

0.47 1.65 

 1.73  4,151.27  3,504.05  1,157,816.55  100.68 MERRILL 1,150,000.00 912828RX0US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/03/2012 0.875% 12/31/2016

0.48 1.73 

 1.98  3,097.03  2,433.33  705,851.30  100.84 RBC CAP 700,000.00 912828SM3US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 03/31/2012 1.000% 03/31/2017

0.58 1.98 

 2.15  8,209.22  11,249.75  2,000,156.00  100.01 CITIGRP 2,000,000.00 912828SY7US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/31/2012 0.625% 05/31/2017

0.62 2.15 

 2.23  4,046.36  4,265.27  1,402,843.40  100.20 MORGANST 1,400,000.00 912828TB6US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/02/2012 0.750% 06/30/2017

0.66 2.23 

 2.32  2,847.75  3,171.96  697,320.40  99.62 BARCLAYS 700,000.00 912828TG5US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2012 0.500% 07/31/2017

0.67 2.32 

 2.32 (1,632.82)(1,261.48) 1,892,726.80  99.62 WELLSFAR 1,900,000.00 912828TG5US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2012 0.500% 07/31/2017

0.67 2.32 

 2.45  8,436.19  3,351.56  1,130,937.50  102.81 MORGANST 1,100,000.00 912828PA2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2010 1.875% 09/30/2017

0.74 2.45 

 2.71  1,037.07  1,203.13  199,625.00  99.81 BARCLAYS 200,000.00 912828UE8US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2012 0.750% 12/31/2017

0.82 2.71 

 2.96  1,918.63  1,941.49  696,882.90  99.55 MERRILL 700,000.00 912828UU2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

0.90 2.96 

 2.96  3,196.76  3,234.52  1,144,879.05  99.55 JPMCHASE 1,150,000.00 912828UU2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

0.90 2.96 

 2.96  6,445.61  6,847.08  1,558,031.06  99.55 MORGANST 1,565,000.00 912828UU2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

0.90 2.96 

(100,686.55)  0.61  2.06  55,590.01  19,805,900.95  19,655,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  2.06

Account 51260100 Page 9



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Value On Cost Amort Cost to WorstCUSIP Broker Date PriceDated Date/Coupon/Maturity Par at Mkt

Market Unreal G/L Unreal G/L DurationNext Call MarketSecurity Type/Description YTMEffective

Duration

Municipal Bond / Note

 0.66  500.50  500.50  275,500.50  100.18 MORGANST 275,000.00 13066KX87CA ST DEPT OF WATER TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 09/27/2012 0.650% 12/01/2015

0.38 0.66 

 1.11  212.25  212.25  75,212.25  100.28 BARCLAYS 75,000.00 91412GSX4UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 10/02/2013 0.907% 05/15/2016

0.65 1.11 

 1.11  10.00  10.00  100,010.00  100.01 JPMCHASE 100,000.00 91412GPX7UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 03/14/2013 0.659% 05/15/2016

0.65 1.11 

 722.75  0.48  0.84  722.75  450,722.75  450,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  0.84

Federal Agency Bond / Note

 1.48  1,046.24 (1,011.92) 283,123.68  101.12 BARCLAYS 280,000.00 3135G0CM3FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

0.50 1.48 

 1.48  1,501.64 (1,597.79) 419,629.74  101.12 BNP PARI 415,000.00 3135G0CM3FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

0.50 1.48 

 1.48  1,567.53  2,229.83  975,036.08  100.00 MORGANST 975,000.00 3130A2T97FHLB NOTES

DTD 08/07/2014 0.500% 09/28/2016

0.50 1.48 

 2.29  5,670.10  5,681.38  760,630.79  100.75 BARCLAYS 755,000.00 3137EADJ5FREDDIE MAC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 06/25/2012 1.000% 07/28/2017

0.68 2.29 

 5,301.50  0.55  1.73  9,785.51  2,438,420.29  2,425,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  1.73

Corporate Note

 0.90  559.04  628.43  285,528.68  100.19 JPMCHASE 285,000.00 713448CE6PEPSICO INC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 02/28/2013 0.700% 02/26/2016

0.49 0.90 

 0.90  2,226.78  2,900.00  801,932.00  100.24 JPMCHASE 800,000.00 46623EJU4JPMORGAN CHASE & CO GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 02/26/2013 1.125% 02/26/2016

0.86 0.90 

 0.84  476.71  586.44  270,427.14  100.16 02/03/16GOLDMAN 270,000.00 06406HCG2BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON (CALLABLE)

DTD 03/06/2013 0.700% 03/04/2016

0.53 1.28 

 0.84  600.31  738.48  340,537.88  100.16 02/03/16GOLDMAN 340,000.00 06406HCG2BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON (CALLABLE)

DTD 03/06/2013 0.700% 03/04/2016

0.53 1.28 

 0.96  1,235.51  1,472.35  551,081.85  100.20 RBC CAP 550,000.00 377372AG2GLAXOSMITHKLINE CAP INC GLOBAL 

NOTES

DTD 03/18/2013 0.700% 03/18/2016

0.50 0.96 

Account 51260100 Page 10



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Value On Cost Amort Cost to WorstCUSIP Broker Date PriceDated Date/Coupon/Maturity Par at Mkt

Market Unreal G/L Unreal G/L DurationNext Call MarketSecurity Type/Description YTMEffective

Duration

Corporate Note

 1.12  1,307.57  1,405.64  386,247.79  100.32 CITIGRP 385,000.00 89236TAL9TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP

DTD 05/17/2013 0.800% 05/17/2016

0.51 1.12 

 1.29  3,234.68  3,526.15  548,002.95  100.55 WELLSFAR 545,000.00 94974BFL9WELLS FARGO & COMPANY

DTD 07/29/2013 1.250% 07/20/2016

0.82 1.29 

 1.36  2,309.02  2,449.02  492,189.32  100.45 WELLSFAR 490,000.00 084664BX8BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN GLOBAL 

NOTES

DTD 08/15/2013 0.950% 08/15/2016

0.62 1.36 

 1.49  2,285.78  2,821.14  316,724.94  100.55 BARCLAYS 315,000.00 02665WAB7AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE GLOBAL 

NOTES

DTD 10/10/2013 1.125% 10/07/2016

0.76 1.49 

 1.87  1,640.46  1,918.35  676,148.85  100.17 CITIGRP 675,000.00 713448CL0PEPSICO CORP NOTES

DTD 02/28/2014 0.950% 02/22/2017

0.86 1.87 

 2.06  4,797.97  4,940.10  904,463.10  100.50 DEUTSCHE 900,000.00 037833AM2APPLE INC CORP NOTE

DTD 05/06/2014 1.050% 05/05/2017

0.81 2.06 

 2.16  2,083.62  2,153.20  561,890.00  100.34 HSBC 560,000.00 24422ESN0JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP NOTES

DTD 06/12/2014 1.125% 06/12/2017

0.97 2.16 

 2.18  1,363.91  1,479.60  301,023.60  100.34 HSBC 300,000.00 40434CAA3HSBC USA INC

DTD 06/23/2014 1.300% 06/23/2017

1.14 2.18 

 2.34  2,283.96  2,323.79  397,126.29  100.54 CITIGRP 395,000.00 14912L6D8CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SE

DTD 08/20/2014 1.250% 08/18/2017

1.02 2.34 

 2.42  1,705.44  1,751.20  201,483.20  100.74 DEUTSCHE 200,000.00 0258M0DR7AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT CORP NOTES

DTD 09/23/2014 1.550% 09/22/2017

1.24 2.42 

 2.79  385.24  522.90  897,777.90  99.75 CITIGRP 900,000.00 459200HZ7IBM CORP NOTES

DTD 02/06/2015 1.125% 02/06/2018

1.21 2.79 

 2.87  4,317.75  4,317.75  754,317.75  100.58 JPMCHASE 750,000.00 30231GAL6EXXON MOBIL CORP NOTES

DTD 03/06/2015 1.305% 03/06/2018

1.10 2.87 

 2.88  2,328.28  2,335.62  336,886.72  100.56 MORGANST 335,000.00 02665WAT8AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP NOTES

DTD 03/13/2015 1.500% 03/13/2018

1.30 2.88 

 38,270.16  0.87  1.81  35,142.03  9,023,789.96  8,995,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  1.84

Certificate of Deposit

 1.04  583.63  583.63  725,583.63  100.08 GOLDMAN 725,000.00 96121TWF1WESTPAC BANKING CORP NY LT FLOAT CD

DTD 04/17/2014 0.433% 04/15/2016

0.15 0.25 

Account 51260100 Page 11



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Value On Cost Amort Cost to WorstCUSIP Broker Date PriceDated Date/Coupon/Maturity Par at Mkt

Market Unreal G/L Unreal G/L DurationNext Call MarketSecurity Type/Description YTMEffective

Duration

Certificate of Deposit

 1.10 (234.90)(234.90) 899,765.10  99.97 GOLDMAN 900,000.00 21684BPV0RABOBANK NEDERLAND NV NY CD

DTD 05/13/2014 0.716% 05/06/2016

0.73 1.10 

 1.20  144.81  320.45  724,882.55  99.98 GOLDMAN 725,000.00 06417HMU7BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA HOUS CD FLOAT

DTD 06/13/2014 0.445% 06/10/2016

0.28 0.25 

 1.20  112.38  112.38  725,112.38  100.02 MERRILL 725,000.00 65558ET57NORDEA BANK FINLAND NY FLOAT CERT 

DEP

DTD 06/13/2014 0.450% 06/13/2016

0.44 0.25 

 1.38  2,638.35  2,638.35  552,638.35  100.48 HSBC 550,000.00 40428AC54HSBC BANK USA NA CD

DTD 02/13/2015 0.880% 08/15/2016

0.21 1.38 

 2.43 (438.43)(223.30) 723,609.45  99.81 08/11/17US BANK 725,000.00 90333VPF1US BANK NA CINCINNATI (CALLABLE) CD

DTD 09/11/2014 1.375% 09/11/2017

1.43 2.43 

 3,196.61  0.56  1.38  2,805.84  4,351,591.46  4,350,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  0.93

 35,875,000.00  36,070,425.41 (53,195.53)  104,046.14  1.88  0.66 Managed Account Sub-Total  1.83

Total Investments $36,140,929.13 

$70,503.72 

$36,070,425.41 

Accrued Interest

Securities Sub-Total $35,875,000.00 ($53,195.53) $104,046.14  1.88  0.66% 1.83 

Account 51260100 Page 12



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Security Transactions & Interest

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Transaction Type

Trade CUSIPSecurity DescriptionSettle Par Proceeds

Principal Accrued

Interest Total Cost

Realized G/L Realized G/L Sale

Amort Cost Method

BUY

03/06/15 EXXON MOBIL CORP NOTES

DTD 03/06/2015 1.305% 03/06/2018

30231GAL6 (750,000.00)  0.00 (750,000.00) 750,000.00 03/04/15

03/13/15 AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP 

NOTES

DTD 03/13/2015 1.500% 03/13/2018

02665WAT8 (334,551.10)  0.00 (334,551.10) 335,000.00 03/10/15

03/27/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

912828UU2 (694,941.41) (2,567.31) (697,508.72) 700,000.00 03/26/15

03/27/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

912828UU2 (1,141,644.53) (4,217.72) (1,145,862.25) 1,150,000.00 03/26/15

(6,785.03) (2,927,922.07)(2,921,137.04) 2,935,000.00 Transaction Type Sub-Total

INTEREST

03/04/15 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 

(CALLABLE)

DTD 03/06/2013 0.700% 03/04/2016

06406HCG2  0.00  1,190.00  1,190.00  340,000.00 03/04/15

03/04/15 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 

(CALLABLE)

DTD 03/06/2013 0.700% 03/04/2016

06406HCG2  0.00  945.00  945.00  270,000.00 03/04/15

03/10/15 BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA HOUS CD 

FLOAT

DTD 06/13/2014 0.445% 06/10/2016

06417HMU7  0.00  756.90  756.90  725,000.00 03/10/15

03/11/15 US BANK NA CINCINNATI (CALLABLE) 

CD

DTD 09/11/2014 1.375% 09/11/2017

90333VPF1  0.00  4,984.38  4,984.38  725,000.00 03/11/15

03/13/15 NORDEA BANK FINLAND NY FLOAT 

CERT DEP

DTD 06/13/2014 0.450% 06/13/2016

65558ET57  0.00  745.40  745.40  725,000.00 03/13/15

03/18/15 GLAXOSMITHKLINE CAP INC GLOBAL 

NOTES

DTD 03/18/2013 0.700% 03/18/2016

377372AG2  0.00  1,925.00  1,925.00  550,000.00 03/18/15

03/22/15 AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT CORP 

NOTES

DTD 09/23/2014 1.550% 09/22/2017

0258M0DR7  0.00  1,541.39  1,541.39  200,000.00 03/22/15

Account 51260100 Page 13



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Security Transactions & Interest

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Transaction Type

Trade CUSIPSecurity DescriptionSettle Par Proceeds

Principal Accrued

Interest Total Cost

Realized G/L Realized G/L Sale

Amort Cost Method

INTEREST

03/27/15 FHLB NOTES (CALLED, OMD 3/27/17)

DTD 03/27/2014 1.625% 03/27/2015

3130A1CR7  0.00  5,646.88  5,646.88  695,000.00 03/27/15

03/28/15 FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

3135G0CM3  0.00  1,750.00  1,750.00  280,000.00 03/28/15

03/28/15 FHLB NOTES

DTD 08/07/2014 0.500% 09/28/2016

3130A2T97  0.00  2,437.50  2,437.50  975,000.00 03/28/15

03/28/15 FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

3135G0CM3  0.00  2,593.75  2,593.75  415,000.00 03/28/15

03/31/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 03/31/2012 1.000% 03/31/2017

912828SM3  0.00  3,500.00  3,500.00  700,000.00 03/31/15

03/31/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2010 1.875% 09/30/2017

912828PA2  0.00  10,312.50  10,312.50  1,100,000.00 03/31/15

03/31/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

912828UU2  0.00  2,625.00  2,625.00  700,000.00 03/31/15

03/31/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

912828UU2  0.00  5,868.75  5,868.75  1,565,000.00 03/31/15

03/31/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

912828UU2  0.00  4,312.50  4,312.50  1,150,000.00 03/31/15

 51,134.95  51,134.95  0.00  11,115,000.00 Transaction Type Sub-Total

MATURITY

03/27/15 FHLB NOTES (CALLED, OMD 3/27/17)

DTD 03/27/2014 1.625% 03/27/2015

3130A1CR7  695,000.00  0.00  695,000.00 (7,638.05)  0.00  695,000.00 03/27/15

 0.00  0.00 (7,638.05) 695,000.00  695,000.00  695,000.00 Transaction Type Sub-Total

SELL

03/06/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

912828UU2  741,093.75  2,426.17  743,519.92 (2,285.16) (2,325.98) SPEC LOT 750,000.00 03/03/15

03/13/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

912828UU2  331,008.79  1,132.01  332,140.80 (1,033.79) (1,070.25) SPEC LOT 335,000.00 03/10/15

03/27/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/17/2013 0.500% 06/15/2016

912828VG2  140,164.06  196.15  140,360.21  180.47  173.21 SPEC LOT 140,000.00 03/26/15

Account 51260100 Page 14



For the Month Ending March 31, 2015Managed Account Security Transactions & Interest

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Transaction Type

Trade CUSIPSecurity DescriptionSettle Par Proceeds

Principal Accrued

Interest Total Cost

Realized G/L Realized G/L Sale

Amort Cost Method

SELL

03/27/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

912828KZ2  233,077.15  1,737.22  234,814.37 (11,355.47)  137.48 SPEC LOT 225,000.00 03/26/15

03/27/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

912828KZ2  802,821.29  5,983.77  808,805.06 (40,596.68)  97.57 SPEC LOT 775,000.00 03/26/15

 11,475.32 (2,987.97)(55,090.63) 2,259,640.36  2,248,165.04  2,225,000.00 Transaction Type Sub-Total

 22,028.00  55,825.24  77,853.24 (62,728.68) (2,987.97)Managed Account Sub-Total

Total Security Transactions ($62,728.68)$77,853.24 $55,825.24 $22,028.00 ($2,987.97)

Account 51260100 Page 15





 













 
 
 
3-Unit Condominium Development 
 
11609 216th Street 
Lakewood 
 
 
 
Initial Study and Environmental Checklist 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 28, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Lakewood 
Community Development Department 
 
5050 Clark Avenue 
Lakewood, California 90712 
(562) 866-9771 



I. INTRODUCTION 
 

A. Background 
 
Project title:    3-Unit Condominium Development 
 
Agency requiring checklist:  City of Lakewood 
 5050 Clark Avenue 
 Lakewood, California 90712 
 
Agency contact person: Carolyn Kolb 
 Assistant Planner  
 (562) 866-9771, extension 2341 
 
Project location: 11609 216th Street 
 Lakewood, California 
 
Name of proponent:   Colony Developers 
 
Proponent’s address and phone:  Colony Developers 

Attention:  Mr. Jeff Leeper 
314 Iris Avenue 
Corona Del Mar, California 92625 

 (949) 922-1669 
 
General Plan designation: Open Space 
 
Proposed General Plan designation: Medium/High Density Residential 
 
Existing Zoning designation: O-S (Open Space) 
 
Proposed Zoning designation: M-F-R (Multiple-Family Residential) 
 
 
B.  Introduction to the Environmental Review Process 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15152 permits tiering of 
environmental analyses for separate but related projects including plans and development 
projects.  According to Guidelines Section 15152(b), tiering is appropriate when the 
sequence of analysis is from an EIR prepared for a general plan, policy or program to a site 
specific EIR or negative declaration.  In the case of this project, the environmental analysis 
was tiered off of the City’s November 1996 Final Master EIR for its Comprehensive General 
Plan (the “Master EIR”).  The analysis and conclusion of the Master EIR were validated in 
the Master Environmental Assessment (“MEA”) prepared in accordance with Section 15169 
of the CEQA Guidelines as amended, and approved by the Lakewood City Council in 
September 25, 2007. 
 

1 
 



In accordance with Guidelines Section 15152(f), a negative declaration shall be required 
when the Initial Study shows that there is no substantial evidence, in light of the whole 
record before the lead agency, that the project may have a significant effect on the 
environment or the Initial Study identifies potentially significant effects but revisions in the 
project plans or proposals would avoid the effects or mitigate the effects to a point where 
clearly no significant effects would occur and there is no substantial evidence, in light of the 
whole record before the lead agency, that the project may have a significant effect on the 
environment.  This Initial Study examined whether the project would result in any new 
project-specific environmental impacts not previously addressed in the General Plan EIR.  
This Initial Study found that a significant environmental impact may occur due to the 
proposed action, but that such impact could be reduced to less than significance with 
implementation of the mitigation measure identified below.  Therefore, a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration will be circulated for public review for a period of not less than 20 days in 
accordance with Public Resources Code Section 21091.(b). 
 
C.  Project Description and Location 
 
The subject site is located on the north side of 216th Street, just west of the San Gabriel River 
Freeway.  To north, south and west are single-family and multiple-family residences in the 
M-F-R zone (see Vicinity Map and Aerial View).  The site is currently a vacant parcel. 
 
Currently, the site is 11,660 square feet in area.  As a condition of approval of the parcel 
map, a five-foot wide area of the southerly portion of the site will be dedicated for right-of-
way widening for the purpose of installing a sidewalk.  After the parcel map has been 
recorded, the site will have a net area of 11,526 square feet, or 0.26 acres.  The project calls 
for an amendment to the Land Use Element to designate the site from Open Space to 
Medium/High Density Residential and to rezone the site from O-S to M-F-R for the purpose 
of constructing three detached condominiums.  The project includes three buildings with 
attached two-car garages, six-foot tall fencing within the required front yard, three open 
parking spaces, and affiliated infrastructure, hardscaping, and landscaping. 
 
Other public agencies whose approval for this project may be required includes the City of 
Lakewood Building and Safety Section of the Community Development Department, the Los 
Angeles County Fire Department, the Los Angeles County Sanitation District, the Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Works, and Golden State Water Company. 
 
D.  Environmental Findings 
 
While the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not 
be a significant effect in this case because the mitigation measures described herein have 
been added to the project. The possible impacts and related mitigation are as follows: 
 
Air Quality: 
 
Impact:  Heavy construction is a source of fugitive dust and exhaust emissions that could have 
a temporary impact on local air quality.  Preparation of the site for building construction could 
produce two forms of air contaminants; exhaust emissions from construction equipment and 

2 
 



fugitive dust generated as a result of soil movement and vehicle activities on unpaved portions 
of the site. However, potential impacts will be reduced to less than significant levels by 
implementation of the mitigation measures listed below. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 

1. All construction equipment shall comply with SCAQMD regulations, including Rule 402, 
which specifies that there be no dust impacts offsite sufficient to cause a nuisance, and 
SCAQMD Rule 403, which restricts visible emissions from construction. 
 

2. Soil shall be moistened prior to grading activities. 
 

3. Exposed soil surfaces shall be watered at least once each day to keep soil moist.  During very 
dry weather or periods of high winds, exposed surfaces shall be watered at least twice a day 
or as often as necessary in order to maintain a surface crust and prevent release of visible 
dust clouds from the subject site. 
 

4. Treat any area that will be exposed for extended periods with a soil conditioner to stabilize 
soil or temporarily plant with vegetation. 
 

5. Wash mud-covered tires and under carriages of trucks and equipment leaving the 
construction site. 

 
6. Provide for street sweeping, as needed, on adjacent roadways to remove dirt dropped by 

construction vehicles, or mud, which would otherwise be carried off by trucks departing 
project sites. 
 

7. Securely cover loads of dirt with a tight fitting tarp on any truck entering or leaving the 
construction site to deliver soil or to dispose of excavated soil. 
 

8. Stop grading during periods when winds exceed 25 miles per hour. 
 

9. Provide for permanent sealing of all graded areas, as applicable, at the earliest practicable 
time after soil disturbance. 
 

10. Install a temporary, slatted, chain link fence or similar barrier such as a cloth windscreen, 
around the perimeter of the site to reduce exposure of neighboring residences and 
commercial sites to prolonged windblown dust.  
 

11. Maintain construction equipment in peak operating condition so as to reduce operation 
emissions. 
 

12. Use low-sulfur diesel fuel in all equipment. 
 

13. Use electric equipment whenever practicable. 
 

14. Shut off engines when not in use. 

3 
 



Greenhouse Gas Emissions: 
 
Impact: The project has the potential to conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation 
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. During construction, all diesel-powered construction equipment shall be turned off when not 

in use or if idling for more than three minutes. 
 

2. Per SCAQMD Rule 1113, the proposed project shall utilize low VOC paint 50 g/L. 
 
3. The project shall require that during site preparation, and grading operations all contractors 

shall comply with all applicable measures listed in SCAQMD Rule 403 to control fugitive 
dust including the application of water to all exposed surfaces a minimum of three times per 
day. 

 
4. The proposed project and its contractors shall ensure that, during construction, contractors 

shall turn off all diesel-powered construction when vehicles are not in use and contractors 
shall prohibit idling of vehicles for longer than three minutes. 

 

4 
 



II. ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 
 
The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, 
involving at least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the 
checklist on the following pages. 

 
 
 
Aesthetics 

 
 

 
Agriculture and 
Forestry Resources 

 
 
 

 
Air Quality 

 
 

 
Biological Resources 

 
 

 
Cultural Resources 

 
 

 
Geology / Soils 

 
 

 
Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

 
 

 
Hazards & Hazardous 
Materials 

 
 

 
Hydrology / Water 
Quality 

 
 

 
Land Use / Planning 

 
 

 
Mineral Resources 

 
 

 
Noise 

 
 

 
Population / 
Housing 

 
 

 
Public Services 

 
 

 
Recreation 

 
 

 
Transportation / 
Traffic 
 

 Utilities / Service  Mandatory Findings 
of Significance 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Determination (to be completed by Lead Agency): 
 
On the basis of this initial evaluation: 
 
I find that the proposed project could not have a significant effect on the environment, and that the 
project is Categorically Exempt of the California Environmental Quality Act guidelines, as 
amended. 
 
I find that the proposed project could not have a significant effect on the environment, and a 
Negative Declaration will be prepared.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there 
will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or 
agreed to by the project proponent.  A Mitigated Negative Declaration will be prepared.  

    
 

 
I find that the proposed project may have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is required.  

 
 

 
I find that the proposed project may have a “potentially significant impact” or “potentially 
significant unless mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been 
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been 
addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets.  
An EIR Report is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or 
Negative Declaration pursuant to applicable legal standards, and (b) have been avoided or 
mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or Negative Declaration, including revisions or mitigation 
measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
                                                                                                                April 28, 2015 
Sonia Dias Southwell, AICP, Director of Community Development Date 

5 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
III. ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST AND DISCUSSION OF CHECKLIST ISSUES 

 
 

I. AESTHETICS.  Would the project: 
 

 a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic     
vista?  (Source #(s): 1, 6 ) 

 
 b) Substantially damage scenic resources,          

including, but not limited to, trees rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state 
scenic highway?  
( 1,6 ) 

 
 c) Substantially degrade the existing        

visual character or quality of the site and its 
surroundings?    ( 1,6 ) 

 
 d) Create a new source of substantial        

light or glare, which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area?  ( 1,6,8 ) 

 
a-d)  The proposed project will not have a substantial adverse effect on any scenic vistas.  The 
project is located within a highly urbanized area, and there are no scenic vistas in the vicinity of 
the project site.  There are no scenic resources on or near the project site; therefore, the project 
will not have an impact on scenic resources.  There are no historic buildings within the vicinity 
of the proposed project.  The subject property abuts four single-family homes to the north and west.  
Two additional single-family homes are located south of the site.  Further west is a large apartment 
complex.  All of these residential units are in the M-F-R zone. 
 
The project site is vacant.  The proposed project is for three two-story detached condominium 
units.  The overall height of the new buildings will be approximately 38 feet.  The project was 
approved by the City’s Development Review Board on March 27, 2014. 
 
Unit 3 will be located approximately 26 feet east of the existing neighboring property.  Units 1 
and 2 will be approximately 40 feet from the existing neighboring properties.  There will not be a 
substantial source of light and glare from the proposed three units which would adversely affect 
the neighboring properties nor affect day or nighttime views. 

 
 
 
 

 6



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 e) Have economic changes associated with the     

proposed project which may result in physical 
changes to the environment that would result in a 
substantial degradation to the existing character or 
quality of its surroundings, or which would 
otherwise result in significant urban decay?  ( 1 ) 
 
 

The site was developed with a single-family home but was demolished when the San Gabriel 
River Freeway was built.  The proposed use will alleviate blight at this by redeveloping the site 
with new residential buildings and associated off-street parking, landscaping, hardscape and 
supporting utilities.  The proposal is an improvement to the site and will not degrade the existing 
character or quality of its surroundings. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES.  Would the project: 
 
 a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland,        

or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland) 
as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of 
the California Resources Agency to non-
agriculture use?  ( 2,3 ) 
 

There is no farmland on or near the vicinity of the subject site; therefore the project will not 
result in the conversion of any farmland, as shown on the maps pursuant to the Farmland 
Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Department of Conservation, to a non-
agricultural use. 
 
 b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural      

use or a Williamson Act contract?  ( 2,3,6 ) 
 
There are no agriculture activities on or adjacent to the site.  There will be no conflict with any 
contracts entered into pursuant to Section 51200 et seq. of the California Government Code (also 
known as the Williamson Act). 
 
 
 

 7



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or      

cause rezoning of forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code Section 12220(g)), timberland (as 
defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), 
or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as 
defined by Government Code Section 51104(g))? 
( 1,6,10 ) 

 
There is no forest land and no timberland within, or adjacent to, the City of Lakewood.  The 
proposed project will have no impact on forest land or timberlands. 
 
 d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion     

of forest land to non-forest use? (1,6,10) 
 
There is no forest land and no timberland within, or adjacent to, the City of Lakewood.  The 
proposed project will have no impact on forest land or timberlands. 
 
 e) Involve other changes in the existing     

environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to 
non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land 
to non-forest use?  ( 1,6,10 ) 

 
Since there is no farmland or agricultural land at the subject site to begin with, the project will 
not result in the conversion of any farmland or agricultural land, to a non-agricultural use. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 

 
 

III. AIR QUALITY.  Would the project:  
 
 a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of      

the applicable air quality plan?  ( 1,6 ) 
 
The subject site is designated by the City of Lakewood’s Comprehensive General Plan for Open 
Space uses and the subject property is zoned as O-S (Open Space).  The project calls for a 
General Plan Amendment to designate this property as Medium/High Residential and a Zone 
Change from O-S to M-F-R to allow the construction of three dwelling units.  The project does 
not have the characteristics to significantly exceed the level of development anticipated by the 
General Plan or the General Plan MEIR following implementation of the air quality mitigation 

 8



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
measures listed below.  The project will not result in an increase in potential air quality impacts 
associated with development of the site, conflict or obstruct the implementation of any applicable 
air quality plan based on anticipated development of the site.  The project may require approval 
from the Southern California Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). 
 
 b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute      

substantially to an existing or projected air quality 
violation?  ( 1,6 ) 
 

The project will not violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or 
projected air quality violation.  Thresholds of significance for air quality standards are contained 
in the General Plan MEIR. 
 
 c) Result in cumulatively considerable net      

increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an 
applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing emissions which 
exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 
precursors)?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
Heavy construction is a source of fugitive dust and exhaust emissions that could have a 
temporary impact on local air quality.  Preparation of the site for building construction could 
produce two forms of air contaminants; exhaust emissions from construction equipment and 
fugitive dust generated as a result of soil movement and vehicle activities on unpaved portions of 
the site.  However, potential impacts will be reduced to less than significant levels by 
implementation of the mitigation measures listed below. 
 
 d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial      

pollutant concentrations?  ( 1,6 ) 
 
Aloha Elementary school is approximately 600 feet northeast of the site.  The project site and the 
school are separated by the San Gabriel River Freeway.  Potential impacts resulting from the 
project will be reduced to less than significant levels by implementation of the mitigation 
measures listed below. 
 
 e) Create objectionable odors affecting a      

substantial number of people?  ( 1,6 ) 
 
 
 
 

 9



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
The project will not create any objectionable odors that might otherwise affect a substantial 
number of people as the project is for a residential condominium development.  Trash carts will 
be kept on the east side of the garage for each residence, facing the private yard for each 
residence until trash day when said carts are moved by the residents to designated areas where 
they are emptied by the City’s trash disposal company.   
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
The mitigation measures listed below are required by the Master EIR and are sufficient to reduce 
potential impacts associated with the proposed project to less than significant levels: 
 
1. All construction equipment shall comply with SCAQMD regulations, including Rule 402, 

which specifies that there be no dust impacts offsite sufficient to cause a nuisance, and 
SCAQMD Rule 403, which restricts visible emissions from construction. 

 
2. Soil shall be moistened prior to grading activities. 
 
3. Exposed soil surfaces shall be watered at least once each day to keep soil moist.  During very 

dry weather or periods of high winds, exposed surfaces shall be watered at least twice a day 
or as often as necessary in order to maintain a surface crust and prevent release of visible 
dust clouds from the subject site. 

 
4. Treat any area that will be exposed for extended periods with a soil conditioner to stabilize 

soil or temporarily plant with vegetation. 
 
5. Wash mud-covered tires and under carriages of trucks and equipment leaving the 

construction site. 
 
6. Provide for street sweeping, as needed, on adjacent roadways to remove dirt dropped by 

construction vehicles, or mud, which would otherwise be carried off by trucks departing 
project sites. 

 
7. Securely cover loads of dirt with a tight fitting tarp on any truck entering or leaving the 

construction site to deliver soil or to dispose of excavated soil. 
 
8. Stop grading during periods when winds exceed 25 miles per hour. 
 
9. Provide for permanent sealing of all graded areas, as applicable, at the earliest practicable 

time after soil disturbance. 
 
 
 

 10



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
10. Install a temporary, slatted, chain link fence or similar barrier such as a cloth windscreen, 

around the perimeter of the site to reduce exposure of neighboring residences and 
commercial sites to prolonged windblown dust.  

 
11. Maintain construction equipment in peak operating condition so as to reduce operation 

emissions. 
 
12. Use low-sulfur diesel fuel in all equipment. 
 
13. Use electric equipment whenever practicable. 
 
14. Shut off engines when not in use. 
 
 
IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES: Would the project: 
 
 a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either      

directly or through habitat modifications, on any 
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or 
special status species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project site is currently vacant and is located in a highly urbanized area.  There are no 
known species on the project site that have been identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or regional plans, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or the 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service that would be adversely affected, either directly or indirectly, by 
the project. 
 
 b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any      

riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project site is currently vacant and is located in a highly urbanized area.  The proposed 
project will not have a substantial impact on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community.  The project will not impede or alter the flow of any waterways. 
 
 

 11



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 c) Have a substantial adverse effect on      

federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 
404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not 
limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological 
interruption, or other means?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project site is currently vacant and is located in a highly urbanized area.  There are no 
federally protected wetlands that would be impacted by the proposed project, as defined by 
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, within the City. 
 
 d) Interfere substantially with the movement       

of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or 
migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of 
native nursery sites?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project site is currently vacant and is located in a highly urbanized area.  The project will not 
interfere with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species.  The 
project will not affect any established wildlife corridors.  The project will not impede the use of 
native nursery sites. 
 
 e) Conflict with any local policies or      

ordinances protecting biological resources, such 
as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?         
( 1,6 ) 

 
The project will not conflict with any local policies or ordinances, including those goals found in 
the Conservation Element of the City of Lakewood General Plan. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
V. CULTURAL RESOURCES.  Would the project: 
 
 a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the      

significance of a historical resource as defined in 
Section 15064.5?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
 

 12



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
The project will not create a substantial adverse change to any historical resource because no 
such resources exist on or in the vicinity of the project site. 
 
 b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the      

significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to Section 15064.5?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The site is vacant.  There will be no substantial adverse changes to any known archaeological 
resources, as a result of the proposed project. 
 
 c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique      

paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature?  ( 1,6 ) 
 

The site is vacant.  There will be no substantial adverse changes to any known paleontological 
resources, site characteristics, and/or unique geological features as a result of the project. 
 
 d) Disturb any human remains, including      

those interred outside of formal cemeteries? ( 1,6 ) 
 
The proposed project is located on a vacant lot in an urbanized area.  The proposed project will 
not disturb the location of any known human remains. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS.  Would the project: 
 
 a) Expose people or structures to potential       

substantial adverse effects, including the risk of 
loss, injury, or death involving: 

 
(i) Rupture of a known earthquake       

Fault as Delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map 
issued by the State Geologist for the area or 
based on other substantial evidence of a 
known fault? ( 1,6 ) 
 
 

 13



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 

(ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ( 1,6 )      
 

(iii) Seismic-related ground failure,      
including liquefaction?  ( 4 )  

 
(iv)  Landslides?  ( 1,6 )      
 

The region has many active and potentially active faults, and the project has the potential to be 
impacted by earthquakes and related hazards - mainly from ground shaking, which is not 
uncommon throughout the region.  The site is not within an Alquist-Priolo Special Study zone.  
There are no known active faults within the Lakewood, and the closest active fault is the 
Newport-Inglewood Fault Zone, located about four miles southwest of the City.  The project will 
be subject to building code requirements for earthquake safety.  Therefore, significant impacts 
related to ground shaking and seismic activity are not anticipated.  Lakewood is virtually flat, 
and the project site is located within a developed urban area; thus the project site will not be 
substantially affected by landslides or mudflows. 
 
 b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the       

loss of topsoil?  ( 1,6 ) 
 

Although the project will involve grading or excavation activities, the site is flat with negligible 
slope.  The applicant will be required to submit an erosion control plan in connection with 
submittal of grading plans as part of the building plan check process.  There will not result in 
substantial erosion or the loss of topsoil. 
 
 c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that      

is unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in on- 
or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction or collapse?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project is not located on a geological unit or soil in such a way that would cause the soil to 
become unstable, or result in any other geologic defect. 

 
 d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined      

in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 
(1994), creating substantial risks to life or 
property?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
 
 

 14



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
Although the project may be located in an area recognized as having expansive soil, the project 
will be subject to building code requirements for development in areas having expansive soil, if 
applicable. 
 

 e) Have soils incapable of adequately      
supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative 
waste water disposal systems where sewers are 
not available for the disposal of waste water?          
( 1,6 ) 
 

The subject buildings will be served by a sanitary sewer system.  The project will not involve 
any new installation, or connection, to any septic tank or alternative waste water disposal system. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
VII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS.  Would the project: 
 
 a) Generate greenhouse emissions, either      

directly or indirectly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment? ( 1,6,10 ) 

 
 b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or      

regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the 
emissions of greenhouse gases? ( 1,6,10 ) 

 
In September 2006, the California legislature approved Assembly Bill 32 (AB 32) thereby 
adopting the California Global Warming Solutions Act (CGWSA) by amending Section 38500 
of the Health and Safety Code.  The central goal of AB 32 is to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions to 1990 levels by the year 2020.  On or before January 1, 2011, the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) must adopt regulations that limit GHG emissions by establishing 
emission reduction measures utilizing the most technologically feasible, most cost-effective 
reduction measures.  These regulations became effective on January 1, 2012. 
 
The project includes the construction of a three two-story dwelling units on a parcel of land the 
was originally assessed by the General Plan for Open Space uses which does contribute the level 
of greenhouse gases as residential uses.  The project has the potential to conflict with an 
applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of 
greenhouse gases. 
 

 15



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. During construction, all diesel-powered construction equipment shall be turned off when not 

in use or if idling for more than three minutes. 
 

2. Per SCAQMD Rule 1113, the proposed project shall utilize low VOC paint 50 g/L. 
 
3. The project shall require that during site preparation, and grading operations all contractors 

shall comply with all applicable measures listed in SCAQMD Rule 403 to control fugitive 
dust including the application of water to all exposed surfaces a minimum of three times per 
day. 

 
4. The proposed project and its contractors shall ensure that, during construction, contractors 

shall turn off all diesel-powered construction when vehicles are not in use and contractors 
shall prohibit idling of vehicles for longer than three minutes. 
 

 
VIII.   HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  Would the project: 

 
 a) Create a significant hazard to the public or      

the environment through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous materials?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project does not have the characteristics, which would otherwise result in the transport, use or 
disposal of significant amounts of hazardous materials.  The project will not create a significant 
hazard to the public or the environment. 

 
 b) Create a significant hazard to the public or       

the environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the 
release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? ( 1,6 ) 
 

The project does not have the characteristics, which would otherwise result in the use and/or 
subsequent release of hazardous materials.  Therefore, the project will not create a significant 
hazard that would result from the accidental release of hazardous materials into the environment. 
 
 c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle      

hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile into 
the environment? ( 1,6 ) 

 

 16



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
The project will not emit any hazardous emissions, nor will it involve the handling of significant 
amounts of hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances or waste. 
 
 d) Be located on a site which is included on      

a list of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 
and, as a result would it create a significant hazard 
to the public or the environment? ( 1,6 ) 
 

The subject site is not on any list of hazardous materials sites, compiled pursuant to Government 
Code Section 65962.5. 

 
 e) For a project located within an airport land      

use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project result in a 
safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the project area? ( 1,6,9 ) 

 
The project site is not located within any airport land use plan and is approximately three miles 
northeast of the Long Beach Airport Area of Influence boundary and approximately three miles 
northwest of the Joint Forces Training Center of Los Alamitos.  The project will not create a 
safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area. 
 
 f) For a project within the vicinity of a private      

airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard 
for people residing or working in the project area? 
( 1,6,9 ) 

 
The project site is not located in the vicinity of any private airstrip, thus the project will not 
create a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area. 
 
 g) Impair implementation of or physically      

interfere with an adopted emergency response 
plan or emergency evacuation plan? ( 1,6 ) 
 

The project will neither impair the implementation of, nor physically interfere with any adopted 
emergency response plan or evacuation plan. 
 
 
 
 

 17



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 h) Expose people or structures to a significant      

risk of loss, injury or death involving wild land 
fires, including where wild lands are adjacent to 
urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed 
with wild lands? ( 1,6,10 ) 

 
There are no brush lands or forests in the vicinity of the project, therefore there will not be an 
increased risk of loss, injury or death from wildfires as a result of this project. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY.  Would the project: 
 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste       
 discharge requirements? ( 1,6 ) 
 
The project will be subject Lakewood Municipal Code Sections 5802 and 9379 which address 
requirements for low impact developments related to water quality and will not violate any water 
quality standards or waste discharge requirements. 
 

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies      
or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 
such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer 
volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table 
level (e.g. the production rate of pre-existing nearby 
wells would drop to a level which would not 
support existing land uses or planned uses or which 
permits have been granted?  ( 1,6 ) 
 

The proposed project will not substantially deplete groundwater supplies nor will it introduce 
any new conditions that would further interfere with groundwater recharge that might otherwise 
create a net deficit in aquifer volumes or a lowering of the local groundwater table.  Storm water 
systems will comply with current code requirements for retention and/or detention of storm 
water.  Furthermore, additional landscape planters will be created throughout the development. 
 
 
 
 
 

 18



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 c) Substantially alter the existing drainage      

pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a 
manner which would result in substantial erosion 
or siltation on-or off site?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project will not substantially alter any drainage patterns in a manner that would result in 
substantial erosion or siltation on or off site. 

 
 d) Substantially alter the existing drainage      

pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or 
substantially increase  the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner which would result in 
flooding on- or off-site? ( 1,5 ) 

 
The Los Angeles River is approximately 6.5 miles west of the site and the San Gabriel River is 
approximately 2,000 feet west of the site.  The project will not substantially alter any drainage 
patterns in a manner that would result in flooding on-or off-site. 
 
 e) Create or contribute runoff water which       

would exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
storm water drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?  
( 1,5 ) 
 

The proposed project will not create or contribute to water runoff in a manner that would exceed 
the capacity of existing or planned storm water drainage systems, nor will it provide substantial 
additional sources of polluted runoff.  The project may be subject to SUSMP requirements, 
which would reduce impacts from storm water runoff.  The project will be subject to Lakewood 
Municipal Code Section 9379 which addresses Low Impact Development. 
 
 f) Otherwise substantially degrade water      

quality? ( 1,5 ) 
 
The project will be subject to all relevant regulations related to water quality.  Water quality 
could not be substantially degraded by the proposed project. 
 
 g) Place housing within a 100-year flood      

hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other 
flood hazard delineation map?  ( 1,5,6 ) 

 19



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
No structures will be placed within a 100-year flood hazard zone.  

 
 h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area      

structures which would impede or redirect flood 
flows?  ( 1,5,6 ) 
 

No housing will be placed within a 100-year flood hazard zone, therefore no flood flows will be 
impeded or redirected. 
 
 i) Expose people or structures to a significant       

risk of loss, injury, or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a 
levee or dam?  ( 1,5,6 ) 
 

The project site is located in flood zone “X,” which is a zone of low flood risk.  The project will 
not cause any persons or structures to be exposed to significant risk of loss, injury, or death 
caused by any flooding. 
 
 j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or      

mudflow? ( 1,5 ) 
 

The closest major body of water is the San Gabriel River, which is approximately 2,000 east of 
the subject site.  The San Gabriel River does not pose a threat to the project with regards to 
seiche or tsunami activity.  Lakewood is a virtually flat and developed urban area, therefore the 
project will not be significantly impacted by any mudflow. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
X. LAND USE AND PLANNING.  Would the project: 
 
 a) Physically divide an established community?      

( 1,6 ) 
 
The proposed project will not disrupt or divide the physical arrangement of an established 
community, including a low income or minority community. 
 
 
 
 

 20



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan,       

policy, or regulation of an agency with 
jurisdiction over the project (including, but not 
limited to the general plan, specific plan, local 
coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for 
the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect?  ( 1,5,6 ) 

 
The project calls for a General Plan Amendment to designate this property as Medium/High 
Residential and a Zone Change from O-S to M-F-R.  The 2013-2021 Housing Element identifies 
this site as suitable for new housing.  The project, therefore, will present no conflict with the 
General Plan or the Zoning Map. 
 
 c) Conflict with any applicable habitat       

conservation plan or natural community 
conservation plan?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
Lakewood is a fully urbanized area, with no applicable habitat conservation plans or natural 
community conservation plans that the project would otherwise conflict with. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
XI. MINERAL RESOURCES.  Would the project: 
 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known      
mineral resource that would be of value to the 
region and the residents of the state?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project will not result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of 
value to the region and the residents of the State of California. 
 
 b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally       

important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or 
other land use plan?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
There are no mineral recovery sites delineated by the City of Lakewood General Plan, therefore, 
the proposed project will not result in the loss of such sites. 
 

 21



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
XII. NOISE.  Would the project: 
 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of      
noise levels in excess of standards established in 
the local general plan or noise ordinance, or 
applicable standards of other agencies?  ( 1,6,7 ) 

 
The project will not result in a substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels 
in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project.  Periodic increases in ambient 
noise may occur during the demolition and construction phase; however, because these increases 
would be temporary, they are considered to be less than significant.  LMC Section 8019 
establishes hours of construction, which are 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Mondays through Saturdays, 
and 9:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Sundays.  This project will not be exempt from Section 8019 of the 
Lakewood Municipal Code.  After completion, the project will not result in the exposure of 
persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in the local general 
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies). 
 
The new units will be constructed adjacent to the San Gabriel River Freeway which directs noise 
from traffic away from the site.  The occupants of the new dwelling units could be impacted by 
the noise generated by the existing freeway traffic noise.  However, there is an existing 14-foot 
freeway sound wall which helps mitigate freeway noise, the proposal includes dual paned 
windows and exterior walls with a Sound Transmission Class (STC) rating of 40 which will 
mitigated noise generated by the adjacent freeway to a less than significant level. 
 

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of      
excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne 
noise levels?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
During construction, the project may result in the exposure of persons of ordinary sensitivity to 
groundborne vibrations or groundborne noise levels generated by heavy construction equipment.  
Such equipment, however, will be used on-site only temporarily and will not result in excessive 
permanent groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels.  The closest residential property 
is approximately 30 feet west of the site.  After the construction phase is completed, this project 
will not have the characteristics which would otherwise result in excessive groundborne 
vibration or groundborne noise levels.  LMC Section 8019 establishes hours of construction, 
which are 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Mondays through Saturdays, and 9:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on 
Sundays.  This project will not be exempt from Section 8019 of the Lakewood Municipal Code. 

 22



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 
 c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient      

noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 
existing without the project?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
Audible permanent noises associated with the project may include vehicular traffic arriving and 
leaving the project site.  However, the site is adjacent to the San Gabriel Freeway and the 
ambient sound levels in that area are primarily from higher speed traffic traveling along the 
freeway.  Vehicles entering and leaving the site will not result in a significant increase in 
ambient sound levels.  In general, the project will not result in a significant permanent increase 
of ambient noise levels in the project vicinity.  Sounds within the proposed buildings will not 
negatively impact the surrounding properties. 
 
 d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase       

in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity 
above levels existing without the project?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project will not result in a substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels 
in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project.  Periodic increases in ambient 
noise may occur during the demolition and construction phase; however, because these increases 
would be temporary, they are considered to be less than significant.  LMC Section 8019 
establishes hours of construction, which are 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Mondays through Saturdays, 
and 9:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Sundays.  This project shall comply with LMC Section 8019. 
 

 e) For a project located within an airport      
land use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels?  ( 1,6,9 ) 

 
The project is not located within an airport land use plan area and is approximately three miles 
northeast of the Long Beach Airport and approximately three miles northwest of the Joint Forces 
Training Center of Los Alamitos Areas of Influence and 65 Community Noise Equivalency 
Level (CNEL) boundaries.  The project will not expose any persons residing in the area to 
excessive noise levels and does not have the characteristics that would expose additional persons 
to excessive noise levels. 

 
 
 
 
 

 23



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 f)  For a project within the vicinity of a      

private airstrip, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels?   
( 1,6,9 ) 

 
There are no private airstrips in the City of Lakewood, therefore the project will not expose any 
persons residing or working in the area to excessive noise levels. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
XIII. POPULATION AND HOUSING.  Would the project: 
 
 a) Induce substantial population growth in an       

area either directly (for example, by proposing 
new homes and businesses) or directly for 
example, through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The site is currently vacant.  The 2010 United State Census estimates that there are 3.10 persons 
per dwelling unit in Lakewood.  The site will be developed with three condominium units.  
Assuming each dwelling unit accommodates 3.10 persons, there would be 9.3 persons living on 
the property.  The site area is .26 acres in area, which yields an average density of 34.9 persons 
per acre.  The General Plan and the housing element of the General Plan establish the maximum 
density of this site at 20 units per acre, or five units.  At 3.10 persons per dwelling unit, the site 
could support up to 15.3 persons.  The proposed density will be about 35% less than the 
maximum assumed population density.  Therefore, the project will not result in substantial   
population growth. 
 
 b) Displace substantial numbers of existing       

housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The proposed project will not displace any existing housing, therefore the project will not require 
the construction or relocation of any dwelling units. 

 
c) Displace substantial numbers of people,       

necessitating the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere?  ( 1,6 ) 

 24



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 

Since the site is vacant, no existing housing will be displaced, therefore the project will not 
displace any persons.  It is not necessary to relocate any persons, nor will it be necessary to 
construct any replacement housing as a result of this project. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
XIV. PUBLIC SERVICES. 
 
 a) Would the project result in substantial       

adverse physical impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, need for new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, the 
construction of which would cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order to maintain 
acceptable service ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any of  the public 
services:  ( 1,8 ) 

 
i) Fire Protection?      

 
 ii) Police Protection?       

 
 iii) Schools?      
 

ii) Parks?      
 

iii) Other public facilities?      
 
The site is served by adequate fire protection.  Los Angeles County Fire Station No. 34 is located 
at 21207 Norwalk Boulevard in the City of Hawaiian Gardens, which is about one and one-half 
miles northeast of the site.  Los Angeles County Fire Station No. 94 is located at 6421 
Turnergrove Drive, which is about two miles northwest of the site.  Two more engine companies 
are available within a 4-5 minute response time.  The project will comply with applicable Los 
Angeles County Fire Department regulations.  Moreover, the project will be designed in 
accordance with all applicable Fire Codes and regulations. 
 
 

 25



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
Law enforcement services for the City of Lakewood are provided by the Los Angeles County 
Sheriff’s Department. The Lakewood Sheriff’s Station is located at 5130 Clark Avenue, 
approximately four mile northwest of the subject site.  Response time is approximately four 
minutes for an emergency situation.  The project site is located within the ABC Unified School 
District (ABCUSD).  According to the ABCUSD website, the schools closest to the project site 
are:  
 

Aloha Elementary School 
11737 214th Street 
Lakewood, CA 90715 
Haskell Middle School 
11525 Del Amo Boulevard 
Cerritos, CA 90703 
 
Artesia High School 
12108 Del Amo Boulevard 
Lakewood, CA 90715 

 
The project will generate property taxes that are used in part to pay for schools, parks and other 
public facilities.  ABCUSD collects school fees for residential projects.  For new construction, 
ABCUSD charges $4.85 per square foot of habitable space and $3.36 per square foot for 
additions over 500 square feet in area.  A park and recreation fee of $17,419.00 must be paid 
prior to final approval of the project.  The proposed project will not have a significant impact on 
these facilities. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
XV. RECREATION. 
 

a) Would the project increase the use of       
existing neighborhood and regional parks such 
that substantial physical deterioration of the 
facility would occur or be accelerated?  ( 1,6 ) 
 

The project will not result in a significant demand on parks or other recreational facilities and 
therefore will not substantially result in, or substantially increase the deterioration of any existing 
or proposed park facilities.  A park and recreation fee of $17,419.00 must be paid prior to final 
approval of the project.   
 

 26



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
 b) Does the project include recreational      

facilities or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have an adverse 
physical effect on the environment?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project does not include recreational facilities nor does it require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities that might have an adverse physical effect on the 
environment.  The project will provide an average of 883 square feet of open space per dwelling 
unit. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
XVI. TRANSPORTATION / TRAFFIC.  Would the project: 
 
 a) Cause an increase in traffic which is      

substantial in relation to the existing traffic load 
and capacity of the street system (i.e., result in a 
substantial increase in either the number of 
vehicle trips, the volume to capacity ratio on 
roads, or congestion at intersections)?  ( 1,6,9 ) 

 
 b) Exceed, either individually or cumulatively,      

a level of service standards established by the 
county congestion management agency for 
designated roads and highways?  ( 1,6,8 ) 

 
a-b) The 2003 San Diego Association of Government's (SANDAG) Brief Guide (the Guide) of 
Vehicular Traffic Generation Rates is used to estimate weekday vehicle trip rates generated by a 
use.  The Guide estimates that three to six dwellings units in an urbanized area generates nine 
trips each weekday for each unit.  This estimate results in an increase of 27 trips per day.   
 
The subject site is served by 216th Street, which is designated by the General Plan as a local 
street with a roadway width of 60 feet.  216th Street satisfies the right of way width requirements 
as prescribed by the General Plan for properties designated for Medium/High Density 
Residential uses.  The City of Lakewood 2014 Traffic Census Program reports a total of 37,987 
automobiles travel along Carson Street daily.  Assuming that 100% of the traffic generated by 
the proposed three-unit condominium project accesses the site from Carson Street, the project 
will result in an increase of traffic of less than 1%.  The City of Lakewood 2014 Traffic Census 
Program reports a total of 9,340 travel along Centralia Street daily.  Assuming that 100% of the 

 27



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
traffic generated by the proposed three-unit condominium project access the site from Centralia 
Street, the project will result in an increase of traffic of less than 1%.  The LOS of the streets 
serving the subject site will not be significantly impacted. 
 
 c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns,       

including either an increase in traffic levels or a 
change in location that results in substantial safety 
risks?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The proposed project does not propose to directly nor indirectly, change air traffic patterns.  The 
project will not create any safety risks with regards to air traffic. 

 
 d) Substantially increase hazards due to a       

design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm 
equipment)?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The project does not include design features such as sharp curves or dangerous intersections, or 
incompatible uses. 
 

d) Result in inadequate emergency access?       
( 1,6 )  

 
The proposed project will not result in inadequate emergency access.  As a part of the building 
plan check process, the project will be reviewed by the Los Angeles County Fire Department. 
 

e) Result in inadequate parking capacity?      
( 1,6,7,8 ) 

 
The site will be developed with three two-car garages and three open parking spaces for a total of 
nine parking spaces, which averages to three parking spaces per dwelling unit.  Section 9490.T.2 
of the Code requires two parking spaces for each dwelling with two bedrooms and 2½ spaces for 
each unit with three bedrooms, plus an additional 10% of the total off-street parking facilities for 
guest parking.  Section 9332.2.A.5 requires that, for condominium projects, a minimum of a 2-
car enclosed garage be provided for each unit.  Each unit will have three bedrooms units, which 
requires eight parking spaces.  The project will include nine parking spaces which exceeds the 
required number of spaces. 
 
The storage of boats, recreational vehicles, trailers or other such vehicles, as well as inoperative 
vehicles may become unsightly and reduce available of on-site parking thereby resulting in 
inadequate parking facilities.  The Conditions, Covenants, and Restrictions (CC&R’s) approved 
for this project should include provisions that ensure sufficient on-site parking.  The garages 

 28



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
should remain unobstructed so as to allow two vehicles to park in each garage.  The CC&R’s 
should specify that no boats, recreational vehicles, trailers or other such vehicles be stored in any 
garage, open parking space, or any other location on this parcel, and that no non-emergency auto 
repairs be allowed in any open parking space.  Similarly, the CC&R’s should specify that no 
garage parking space shall be rented out or otherwise made available to any person who is not an 
occupant of that dwelling unit.  There will be adequate parking to accommodate this project.  
There will be 150 linear feet of common driveway with a minimum width of 20 feet. 
 
 g) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or      

programs supporting alternative transportation        
(e.g., bus turnouts, bicycle racks)?  ( 1,7,8 ) 
 

The proposed project will not conflict with any adopted policies, plans, or programs supporting 
alternative transportation.  More than one route for Long Beach Transit runs on Carson Street.  A 
bus stop is located approximately 1,000 feet southwest of the site at the northwest corner of 
Nectar Avenue and Carson Street. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
XVII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS.  Would the project: 
 
 a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements      

of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control 
Board? ( 1,6 )  
 

The Tentative Parcel Map for this project has been reviewed by the Los Angeles County 
Department of Public Works.  The project will not generate wastewater that might exceed the 
wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board.  
The project site will be served by the Golden State Water, which has produced a will-serve letter 
for this project (see attachment). 

 
 b) Require or result in the construction of new       

water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant environmental 
effects?  ( 1,6 ) 
 
 
 

 29



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
The proposed project will not require the construction of any off-site water or wastewater 
treatment facilities.  The developer will be responsible for extending an existing water line to 
serve the site.  Golden State Water Company has issued a will-serve letter for this project.   
 
Los Angeles County Public Department of Public Works has recommended approval for this 
project.  The developer will install separate house laterals to serve each building in the land 
division.  Installation and dedication of main line sewers may be necessary to meet the 2% grade 
for the house laterals.  The developer shall send a print of the land division map to the County 
Sanitation District with a request for annexation.  The request for annexation must be approved 
prior to final map approval.  The developer shall provide a minimum 10-foot sewer easement on 
the private driveway and fire lane. 
 
The Los Angeles County Public Department of Public Works recommends that the developer 
upgrade the existing off-site sewer mainline segments.  This upgrade is not required by the City 
of Lakewood Public Works Department.  The main sewer line for this site connects to the Los 
Angeles County Sanitation District trunk sewer line approximately one mile south in the City of 
Hawaiian Gardens.  The City of Hawaiian Gardens submitted a letter dated January 22, 2015 to 
the City of Lakewood stating the City of Hawaiian Gardens has sufficient capacity to accept the 
sewer discharge from the three-unit development. 
 
The Los Angeles County Sanitation District has issued a will-serve letter for this project.  The 
project will be reviewed in light of current and projected wastewater capacities.  Any 
infrastructure improvements or expansions will be the financial responsibility of the developer.  
The proposed water and wastewater improvements will not cause any significant environmental 
effects. 

 
 c) Require or result in the construction of new      

storm water drainage facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, the construction of which could 
cause significant environmental effects?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The proposed project will not require construction of new off-site storm water drainage facilities.  
The project will be subject to any recommended SUSMP conditions as identified during the 
Tentative Parcel Map and building plan check process. 
 
 d) Have sufficient water supplies available to      

serve the project from existing entitlements and 
resources, or are new or expanded entitlements 
needed?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
 
 

 30



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
The existing water system has sufficient capacity to accommodate the proposed project.  Golden 
State Water Company has issued a will-serve letter for this project has issued a will-serve letter 
for this project. 

 
 e) Result in a determination by the wastewater       

treatment provider which serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the 
project’s projected demand in addition to the 
provider’s existing commitments?  ( 1,6 ) 
 

A Master Environmental Impact Report (MEIR) was prepared as part of the 1996 General Plan, 
and a Master Environmental Assessment (MEA) was adopted on September 25, 2007.  For both 
of these documents, comments were solicited from various agencies, including Los Angeles 
County Sanitation District as part of the public review process prior to adoption of the MEIR and 
the MEA.  The project will not individually or cumulatively exceed the environmental thresholds 
established by the MEIR or the MEA.  The Los Angeles County Sanitation District has issued a 
will-serve letter for this project.   
 
 f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient       

permitted capacity to accommodate the project’s 
solid waste disposal needs?  ( 1,6 ) 

 
The City’s Public Works Department, working in conjunction with the City’s designated trash 
disposal contractor, has determined that existing solid waste disposal resources are able to 
accommodate the project’s solid waste disposal needs. 

 
 g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes      

and regulations related to solid waste?  ( 1,6 ) 
 
The project will comply with all applicable federal, state and local regulations pertaining to solid 
waste. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 31



 
 
 
 
 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

 
Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

 
Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

 
No 
Impact 

 
XVIII. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE. 
 
 a) Does the project have the potential to      

degrade the quality of the environment, 
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or 
wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-sustaining levels, 
threaten to eliminate a plant or animal 
community, reduce the number or restrict the 
range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or 
eliminate important examples of the major periods 
of California history or prehistory? 
( 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11 ) 
 

The area in which the site is located is highly urbanized; therefore, it is unlikely that the 
proposed project would affect any rare or endangered wildlife.  It is also unlikely that cultural 
resources would be affected by the proposed project. 
 
 b) Does the project have impacts that are      

individually limited, but cumulatively 
considerable? (“Cumulatively considerable” 
means that the incremental effects of a project are 
considerable when viewed in connection with the 
effects of past projects, the effects of other current 
projects, and the effects of probable future 
projects)?  ( 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11 ) 
 

As discussed above, the project will not produce impacts that are individually or cumulatively 
considerable. 
 
 c) Does the project have environmental effects      

which will cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or indirectly?                                    
( 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11 ) 
 

The proposed project, because of its scale and type, would not cause substantial adverse effects 
on human beings, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Mitigation Measures 
 
1. None required. 

 32



 
XVIII.  EARLIER ANALYSES. 
 
Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA 
process, one or more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative 
declaration (CEQA Guidelines Section 15063(c)(3)(D)). CEQA Guidelines Section 15152 
permits tiering of environmental analyses for separate but related projects including plans and 
development projects.  According to Guidelines Section 15152(b), tiering is appropriate when 
the sequence of analysis is from an EIR prepared for a general plan, policy or program to a site 
specific EIR or negative declaration. 
 
In the case of this project, the environmental analysis was tiered from the Master Environmental 
Impact Report (MEIR) and subsequent Master Environmental Assessment (MEA) prepared for 
the Lakewood Comprehensive General Plan.  Guidelines Section 15152(h)(1) specifically 
identifies a General Plan EIR as a type of EIR that can be used for tiering.  The City prepared the 
MEIR in November, 1996 and approved the MEA on September 25, 2007. 

 33



 
Earlier Analysis 

 
a) Earlier analyses used. Identify earlier analyses and state where they are available for review. 
 

Documents used for this analysis include plans provided by the Permittee and the City of 
Lakewood General Plan Technical Background Report.  Copies of all plans and studies used 
to prepare this Initial Study, as well as the MEIR and MEA, are on file and available for 
public review during normal business hours at the City of Lakewood Community 
Development Department, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, California 90712. 

 
b) Impacts adequately addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within 

the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal 
standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the 
earlier analysis. 

 
Impacts that reference the environmental documents listed in section a) above, are contained 
within the scope of those documents and have been adequately analyzed in those documents, 
pursuant to applicable legal standards. 

 
c) Mitigation measures. For effects that are “Less than Significant with Mitigation 

Incorporated,” describe mitigation measures incorporated or refined from the earlier 
document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project. 

 
IV. SUPPORTING INFORMATION SOURCES 
 
1. City of Lakewood Comprehensive General Plan.  City of Lakewood.  This reference includes 

the Policy Document, the Technical Background Report, and the Final Master EIR, first 
adopted November, 1996, and the Master Environmental Assessment, which was approved 
on September 25, 2007. 

2. California Government Code Section No. 51200 et seq. State of California (see Section II.a) 
of this Environmental Checklist). 

3. A Guide to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program. California Department of 
Conservation.  1994. 

4. Seismic Hazard Zones, Long Beach Quadrangle Official Map. California Department of 
Conservation: Division of Mines and Geology.  March 25, 1999. 

5. National Flood Insurance Program, Flood Insurance Rate Map, Community-Panel Number 
060130 0005 A.  Federal Emergency Management Agency.  Effective January 11, 2002. 

6. Official Zoning Map (as amended).  City of Lakewood. 
7. Municipal Code of the City of Lakewood (as amended).  City of Lakewood. 
8. Plans and related information submitted by the applicant. 
9. California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook.  State of California Department of 

Transportation Division of Aeronautics.  January, 2002. 
10. California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection.  Fire Hazard Severity Zone map for 

Los Angeles County: 
http://www.fire.ca.gov/fire_prevention/fhsz_maps/fhsz_maps_losangeles.php June 9, 2010. 

11. City of Lakewood 2014 Traffic Census Program. 
 

 34

http://www.fire.ca.gov/fire_prevention/fhsz_maps/fhsz_maps_losangeles.php


 

APPENDIX “C” 
 
 
 
 

Vicinity Map 
Aerial View 

Existing General Plan Land Use Designation 
Proposed General Plan Land Use Designation 

Existing Zoning Classification 
Proposed Zoning Classification 

Preliminary Drawings 
Tentative Parcel Map 

LA County Approval Letter 
LA County Fire Department Approval Letter 

Sewer Area Study 
Will Serve Letters 

Easement 

 35



´ 3333 WARWOD AVENUE ±

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
11

54
0

11
55

5
11

55
6

11
53

4
11

53
1-

3
3

11
60

2

11
53

7

11
54

0

11
54

6-
4

8

21503

11
60

0

11
52

8-
3

0

21536

11
52

2

21515

21524

21530
11

6
0

4

21504

21508

11
52

6

11
6

0
6

21516

11
64

4-
4

8

11
65

0

11
65

6

VICINITY MAP

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2015-1, 
ZONE CHANGE NO. 114, AND

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 72930
11609 216TH STREET

SUBJECT SITE

216TH STREET

R
O

S
E

T
O

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

S
A

N
 G

A
B

R
IE

L R
IV

E
R

 FR
E

E
W

AY
(i-605)

M-F-R (MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL)

O-S (OPEN SPACE)

C-4 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL)

SUBJECT SITE

SUBJECT SITE



´

RO
SE

TO
N 

AV
EN

UE

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2015-1,
ZONE CHANGE NO. 114, AND

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 72930
11609 216TH STREET

AERIAL VIEW

SUBJECT SITE

SAN GABRIELS FREEWAY (I-605)

216TH STREET



´

EXISTING GENERAL PLAN LAND USES 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2015-1, 
      ZONE CHANGE NO. 114, AND    
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 72930 

11609 206TH STREET

EXHIBIT "A"

MEDIUM/HIGH
DENSITY

RESIDENTIAL

RO
SE

TO
N 

AV
EN

UE

216TH STREET

SAN GABRIEL RIVER FREEWAY (I-605)

SITE
EXISTING

GENERAL PLAN
DESIGNATION-
OPEN SPACE

MEDIUM/HIGH
DENSITY

RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM/HIGH
DENSITY

RESIDENTIAL



´

PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN LAND USES 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2015-1, 

ZONE CHANGE NO. 114, AND
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 72930 

 11609 206TH STREET

EXHIBIT "B"
RO

SE
TO

N 
AV

EN
UE

216TH STREET

SAN GABRIEL RIVER FREEWAY (I-605)

MEDIUM/HIGH
DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL

SITE
PROPOSED

GENERAL PLAN 
DESIGNATION-
MEDIUIM/HIGH

DENSITY
RESDIENTIAL

MEDIUM/HIGH
DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM/HIGH
DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL



´

EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATIONS 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2015-1, 

ZONE CHANGE NO. 114, AND
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 72930

 11609 206TH STREET

EXHIBIT "C"

M-F-R

M-F-R

M-F-R

RO
SE

TO
N 

AV
EN

UE

216TH STREET

SAN GABRIEL RIVER FREEWAY (I-605)

SITE
EXISTING
ZONING-

O-S



´

PROPOSED ZONING DESIGNATIONS 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2015-1, 

ZONE CHANGE NO. 114, AND
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 72930

 11609 206TH STREET

EXHIBIT "D"

M-F-R

RO
SE

TO
N 

AV
EN

UE

216TH STREET

SAN GABRIEL RIVER FREEWAY (I-605)

M-F-R

M-F-R

SITE
PROPOSED

ZONING-
M-F-R



EXHIBIT "E"



OF

SITE PLAN,
FLOOR
PLANS

&
ELEVATIONS

SP
1 2

A
  
R

  
C

  
H

  
I 
 T

  
E

  
C

  
T

G
E

O
R

G
E

 B
E

H
N

A
M

P
L

A
C

E
N

T
IA

, 
C

A
 9

2
8

7
0

11
5

0
 E

. 
O

R
A

N
G

E
T

H
O

R
P

E
 #

 1
0

9

(7
1

4
)5

7
2

-2
3

8
4

F
A

X
(7

1
4

)5
7

2
-2

3
8

5

P
R

O
JE

C
T:

O
W

N
E

R
 :

DATE

REVISIONS

11
6

0
9

 E
A

S
T

 2
1

6
 t

h
  

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
A

K
E

W
O

O
D

, 
C

A
 9

0
7

1
5

3
1

4
 I

R
IS

 A
V

E
.

C
O

R
O

N
A

 D
E

L
 M

A
R

,C
A

TABULATION

- 

NUMBER OF UNIT

NUMBER OF BEDROOMS

OPEN SPACE PER UNIT

- UNIT MIX

C
O

L
O

N
Y

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
S

  
L

L
C

.

BUILDING FOOT PRINT

LOT COVERAGE

PAVING AREA 

LANDSCAPE  

PARKING

P
:\

N
e

tD
is

k\
P

ro
je

ct
s\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
2

0
1

3
\1

3
11

0
4

-C
o

lo
n

y-
2

1
6

 s
tr

e
e

t\
3

 U
n

its
\0

3
-1

2
-2

0
1

4
 C

O
L

O
N

E
Y

 2
1

6
 S

T
(C

O
R

R
E

C
T

IO
N

-1
).

.d
w

g
, 

3
/1

1
/2

0
1

5
 1

1
:0

3
:2

0
 A

M
, 

D
W

G
 T

o
 P

D
F.

p
c3

L.
F
.

L.F.

6’ TALL FENCING WITHIN CAL TRANS RIGHT-OF-WAY 

EXHIBIT “F”



OF

FLOOR

PLANS

&

ELEVATIONS

A-1

2 2

A
 
 
R

 
 
C

 
 
H

 
 
I
 
 
T

 
 
E

 
 
C

 
 
T

G
E

O
R

G
E

 
B

E
H

N
A

M

P
L
A

C
E

N
T

I
A

,
 
C

A
 
9
2
8
7
0

1
1
5
0
 
E

.
 
O

R
A

N
G

E
T

H
O

R
P

E
 
#
 
1
0
9

(
7
1
4
)
5
7
2
-
2
3
8
4

F
A

X
(
7
1
4
)
5
7
2
-
2
3
8
5

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

O
W

N
E

R
 
:

DATE

REVISIONS

1
1
6
0
9
 
E

A
S

T
 
2
1
6
 
t
h
 
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
A

K
E

W
O

O
D

,
 
C

A
 
9
0
7
1
5

3
1
4
 
I
R

I
S

 
A

V
E

.

C
O

R
O

N
A

 
D

E
L
 
M

A
R

,
C

A

C
O

L
O

N
Y

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
S

 
 
L

L
C

.

P:
\N

et
D

is
k\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

13
\1

31
10

4-
Co

lo
ny

-2
16

 s
tr

ee
t\

3 
U

ni
ts

\0
3-

12
-2

01
4 

CO
LO

N
EY

 2
16

 S
T(

CO
RR

EC
TI

O
N

-1
)..

dw
g,

 3
/1

2/
20

14
 6

:3
3:

42
 P

M
, D

W
G

 T
o 

PD
F.

pc
3

EXHIBIT "G"



EXHIBIT “H”

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2015-1, 
ZONE CHANGE NO. 114, AND

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 72930 
11609 216TH STREET



EXHIBIT "I"

































































































































 









 















 






	CC Initial Study and Env Checklist, VPM 72930 ZC .pdf
	11609 216th Street
	Lakewood
	Initial Study and Environmental Checklist
	April 28, 2015
	City of Lakewood
	Community Development Department
	A. Background
	Project title:    3-Unit Condominium Development
	General Plan designation: Open Space
	Proposed General Plan designation: Medium/High Density Residential
	Existing Zoning designation: O-S (Open Space)
	Proposed Zoning designation: M-F-R (Multiple-Family Residential)
	B.  Introduction to the Environmental Review Process
	California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15152 permits tiering of environmental analyses for separate but related projects including plans and development projects.  According to Guidelines Section 15152(b), tiering is appropriat...
	In accordance with Guidelines Section 15152(f), a negative declaration shall be required when the Initial Study shows that there is no substantial evidence, in light of the whole record before the lead agency, that the project may have a significant e...
	D.  Environmental Findings

	I. AESTHETICS.  Would the project:
	II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES.  Would the project:
	III. AIR QUALITY.  Would the project:
	V. CULTURAL RESOURCES.  Would the project:
	VII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS.  Would the project:
	directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment? ( 1,6,10 )
	regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases? ( 1,6,10 )
	VIII.   HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  Would the project:
	IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY.  Would the project:
	X. LAND USE AND PLANNING.  Would the project:
	XI. MINERAL RESOURCES.  Would the project:
	XII. NOISE.  Would the project:
	XIII. POPULATION AND HOUSING.  Would the project:
	XIV. PUBLIC SERVICES.
	The site is served by adequate fire protection.  Los Angeles County Fire Station No. 34 is located at 21207 Norwalk Boulevard in the City of Hawaiian Gardens, which is about one and one-half miles northeast of the site.  Los Angeles County Fire Statio...
	Law enforcement services for the City of Lakewood are provided by the Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department. The Lakewood Sheriff’s Station is located at 5130 Clark Avenue, approximately four mile northwest of the subject site.  Response time is app...
	XV. RECREATION.
	XVI. TRANSPORTATION / TRAFFIC.  Would the project:
	XVII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS.  Would the project:
	XVIII.  EARLIER ANALYSES.
	Earlier Analysis
	IV. SUPPORTING INFORMATION SOURCES


	Exhibits for Miss Jo.pdf
	Exhibit F Site Plan-03-11-15 Fencing on CT PRW.pdf
	Page 1

	Exhibit H Color Renderings.pdf
	Page 1





